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St Peters Church (former)

Key details
Also known as Indooroopilly Wesleyan Methodist Church, Diamond True Blue Loyal Orange
Lodge 26
Addresses At 402 Moggill Road, Indooroopilly, Queensland 4068
Type of place Church
Period Federation 1890-1914
Style Carpenter Gothic
Lot plan L9_RP890942; L9 RP890942
Key dates Local Heritage Place Since — 1 December 2017

Date of Citation — January 2010
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Construction Walls: Timber

Criterion for listing (A) Historical; (D) Representative

St Peter’'s Church on Moggill Road, Indooroopilly, was built in 1891 at a time of increased settlement in
Indooroopilly. The church, originally known as the Indooroopilly Wesleyan Methodist Church, is a fine example of
a nineteenth-century timber church building in the Indooroopilly area and demonstrates the spiritual needs of the
area’s early European settlers. The church originally fronted Rylatt Street but was moved on the lot to front
Moggill Road in the 1950s. The church demonstrates the commitment of the local Methodist community to
establishing and developing their place of worship in the local area. The church building has played a continuous
role in the Indooroopilly community since its construction.

History

European farming began in the Moggill, Fig Tree Pocket and Long Pocket districts from the 1860s. More
intensive development of the area followed the opening of the Indooroopilly railway service in 1875. Wealthy
families, drawn by the elevated land and proximity to the river, established gracious villas on large allotments of
land. Some of these were subdivided during the prosperous years of the 1880s. By the end of the decade the
local community was well established with Presbyterian and Primitive Methodist churches, schools, a post office,
hotel and a number of stores.

Throughout the 1880s and 1890s many of the larger parcels of land in the district were subdivided and offered
for sale as 16 perch housing allotments, particularly in the Stamford Estate located between Musgrave Road and
Coonan Street, and Belgrave Road and Station Road. Richmond Estate between Riverview Terrace and
Musgrave Road, and Riverview Estate between Finney and Witton Creek, were originally sold in larger
allotments. A punt ferry complimented the rail service by providing a cross-river service for travellers wishing to
use their own means of transport. By this time the local Aboriginal population had all but disappeared. Disease
and displacement had severely reduced their numbers, and legislation designed to ‘protect’ them from disease
and abuse, facilitated their complete removal from urban areas.

By the turn of the century Indooroopilly had a well established European community and was rising steadily as
an elite suburb with all the facilities and conveniences of a modern urban centre. The 1893 floods which
destroyed the railway bridge, while having a devastating effect on the development of the suburbs on the south
side, did little to impede the progress of this elevated area. A new rail bridge, the Albert, was opened in 1895.
Station Road was becoming established as a retail and community centre. By the early 1920s the post office, a
fruiterer, draper, butcher, boot-maker and stables were located there as well as a number of general stores.

Prior to the establishment of the Wesleyan Methodist Church, the Indooroopilly area had Methodist
representation from as early as 1872 in the form of a Primitive Methodist mission under the direction of Reverend
Joseph Buckle. Initially the Primitive Methodist mission had purchased five acres from the Government on which
the first meeting place was built. However, with the increased settlement in the area the need for a Wesleyan
Methodist church became apparent.
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In 1890 the Reverend Robert Stewart and Charles Highfield purchased a thirty-two perch block of land on the
corner of Moggill Road and Rylatt Street. Previously this land had been included in the larger parcel of land
owned and subsequently subdivided by George Rylatt. In April 1891 Trustees for the land, under the provisions
of “The Wesleyan Methodist Model Deed of Queensland”, were appointed and a mortgage for £1250 was taken
out on behalf of the Wesleyan Methodist Church for the construction of the timber church. The Wesleyan

Methodist Church was first listed in the Post Office Directories in 1891, confirming that the church was built in
1890-91. Originally the building had its frontage to Rylatt Street. Whereas today the building sits in a north-south
direction, the church originally was built in an east-west direction.

Of the population of Queensland in 1881, 73 900 or 34.6% were declared adherents of the Church of England.
Catholics reached 25.5%, and other Protestant religions made up 34%. Of the Protestants, the Wesleyan
Methodist and Primitive Methodist group made up 8.28%, reducing to 7.0% by 1891.

In 1896 the Indooroopilly Wesleyan Methodist Church amalgamated with the Indooroopilly Primitive Methodist
Church (at that time located in Riverview Terrace) as a result of financial hardship. The church then became
known as the Indooroopilly Methodist Church.

As the congregation strengthened in the early twentieth century a new Methodist Church building was proposed
for Indooroopilly. Prior to World War | the population of the Indooroopilly district increased markedly and the
minister of the time, Reverend W. Little, organised the acquisition of land at the corner of Station and Mulgrave
Roads. It was proposed to initially move the old church there and to erect a new church at a later date. The
removal did not take place. Ultimately the Toowong Circuit resolved to build a brick church on the sloping site
with a school hall underneath. The outbreak of the First World War and the tragedy of the Gallipoli Campaign led
to the church being dedicated as an Anzac memorial.

In 1916 the church and land fronting Moggill Road was sold to the Diamond True Blue Loyal Orange Lodge, a
Protestant organisation formed to maintain Protestant control of Irish politics. In the colonies, the True Blue Loyal
Orange Lodges remained closely associated with the original principles and distinguished themselves in areas of
benevolent and charitable works. 402 Moggill Road remained an Orange Lodge until 1924,

In 1936 the land was purchased by the Synod of the Diocese of Brisbane and became an Anglican Church in
1937. Several minor changes were made to the original building at this time including the creation of a chancel
where the main entrance once was and an entrance created on the western side of the building. The church in
this period was named St Peter’s.

In 1959 the church building was moved on the site, giving the building its north-south axis and a Moggill Road
frontage. In the same year the adjacent hall/church brick building was built. This building was designed by
Brisbane architect Stephen Trotter and constructed at a cost of £5, 400. This building, however, does not meet
the criteria for inclusion onto the City Plan Heritage Register. Only the original 1891 timber church is included in
the listing.

Description

402 Moggill Road is a nineteenth-century timber church facing Moggill Road. The church has a steep-pitched
corrugated iron roof and weatherboard clad walls. An enclosed chancel is located at the front of the church. The
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eastern side of the church has a side porch with a single gabled roof and set of timber stairs.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014. It is significant because:

Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history

as a nineteenth-century timber church built in a period of residential growth in the area and reflective of the need
for churches in the community.

Representative
CRITERION D

The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class or classes of cultural
places

as a nineteenth-century timber church building built by the Wesleyan Methodists.
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Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.
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